Haringey Counci NOTICE OF MEETING

Children's Safeguarding Policy and Practice
Advisory Committee

THURSDAY, 22ND NOVEMBER, 2012 at 19:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD,
WOOD GREEN, LONDON N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Adamou, Allison, Bull, Corrick, Scott, Stewart(Chair)

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2. URGENT BUSINESS
The Chair will consider the admission of late items of urgent business. Late items will
be considered under the agenda item they appear. New items will be dealt with at
items 8 &12 below.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a matter
who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is considered:
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest becomes
apparent, and
(i) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must withdraw
from the meeting room.
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not
registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a pending
notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days of the
disclosure.
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests are
defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of Conduct.

4, MINUTES (PAGES 1 -18)



10.

11.

12.

To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 17" September 2012

To consider the draft minutes of the Joint meeting held with Corporate Parenting
Committee on 29" October 2012.

MATTERS ARISING (PAGES 19 - 22)
To consider the committee work plan.

PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT - YEAR TO OCTOBER 2012 INCORPORATING
UPDATED COMPARATIVE DATA FOR 2011/12 (PAGES 23 - 42)

This report sets out performance data and trends for an agreed set of measures
relating to Contacts, referrals and assessments and Child Protection.

VISITS TO CHILDREN SUBJECT TO CHILD PROTECTION PLANS (PAGES 43 -
46)

The Committee to consider analysis and data in relation to the performance figure
around visits to children subject to child protection plans.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
To consider any new items of business submitted at item 2 above.
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

There will be a motion to exclude the press and public from the meeting for
consideration of the following items as they contain exempt information as defined in
section 100a of the local government Act 1972(as amended by section 12A of the
Local Government Act 1985):paras 1&2:namely information relating to any individual
and information likely to reveal the identity of an individual.

OUT OF TIME ASSESSMENTS (PAGES 47 - 58)

The Committee to consider the findings of a qualitative audit on out of time
assessments completed by the Independent member.

CASES THAT MEET SAFEGUARDING (SECTION 47) THRESHOLD BUT DO NOT
PROGRESS TO CHILD PROTECTION CONFERENCE

The Acting Head of First Response to provide a verbal update on this.
EXEMPT ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

To consider any new items of exempt business submitted at item 2 above.



David McNulty Ayshe Simsek
Head of Local Democracy and Member Services  Principal Committee Co-ordinator

5" Floor Tel: 0208 489 2929

River Park House Fax: 0208 489 2660

225 High Road Email: ayshe.simsek@haringey.gov.uk
Wood Green

London N22 8HQ



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AN

Page 1 Aqunda ltem 4

PRACTICE ADVISORY

COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 17 SEPTEMBER 2012

Councillors Adamou, Allison, Bull, Corrick, Davies and Stewart (Chair)

Apologies

None

Also Present: Councillor Waters, Lisa Blundell, Sylvia Chew, Marion Wheeler, Phil

Dileo, Jeannette Brand, Deirdre Cregan, Michelle Robson, Chrissy
Austin.

MINUTE ACTON
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY
TEX84. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence received.

TEX85. | URGENT BUSINESS
The Chair had agreed to admit a report on Safeguarding Performance
Data, for the year up to July, as a late item of business. This report had
been distributed to Members of the Committee and was attached at
Agenda ltem 7.

TEX86. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Cllr Adamou declared a personal interest as both her daughters worked
in Haringey, one as a Social Worker for children with disabilities, and the
other as a teacher.

TEX87. | MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on the 10" July 2012 were agreed as | Clerk
an accurate record of the meeting.

TEX88. | MATTERS ARISING

The agenda plan, listing items for future meetings, was tabled for
Committee Members to consider and comment on. Since the last
meeting, in July, the Chair and Independent Member had been in
discussion with Cabinet Member for Children’s Services about taking
forward an audit on late initial assessments. Although, there was
information available about the number of assessments that were
completed out of timescale, there was not an understanding on how far
out of timescale the assessments had been completed and the factors
contributing to this. The Chair was in agreement, with the Cabinet
Member, that this was an area that required further exploration. The
Committee agreed the findings of the audit report would be considered | HC
at the next meeting on November 22" 2012.




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE ADVISORY
COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 17 SEPTEMBER 2012

The Committee further noted that the Independent Member had been
speaking with Adults Services about her proposed audit of cases where
substance misuse was an issue. The audit was also intended to
explore the interface between Safeguarding and Adults service. It had
now been agreed to defer this report to the Committee meeting in
March as there was an existing service audit of files taking place.
Instead, there would be a some questions added to the audit to cover
these issues.

The joint meeting between Corporate Parenting and the Children’s
Safeguarding Policy and Practice Committee was due to take place on
the 29" October 7.30pm. The items listed for this meeting included the
lessons learnt from serious case reviews. It was agreed to defer this to a
later meeting to allow a discussion on the Haringey 54000 change
programme. The Independent Member had recommended to the Chair
that it would be worthwhile for the both Children’s Committees to
consider a report on the Haringey 54000 programme which was putting
children and young people at the centre of what the service does. This
will involve moving to a higher proportion of early intervention,
preventative services and reducing the need for statutory services. This
was a key programme which concerned both Children’s Committee’s
areas of responsibilities and it was felt useful by the Independent
Member that this should be dealt with in a joint forum.

RESOLVED

MW

i. The Committee agreed that a report on Haringey 54000 go
forward to the Joint meeting on the 29.10.2012.

i. Agreed that a report on safeguarding performance data and LAC | MW
data for the half year, with benchmarking figures included, be
considered at the Joint meeting on the 29" October 2012.

TEX89. | PRESENTATION ON THE TRAINING ACTIVITIES BEING
UNDERTAKEN WITH PARTNERS AND SOCIAL WORKERS
REGARDING RAISING AWARENESS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE

The Committee received a presentation from Deirdre Cregan, Domestic
Violence Co-ordinator and Michelle Robson, Senior Practitioner for
Domestic Violence. The information shared with the Committee was also
provided to Social Workers as currently domestic violence was a factor
(not necessarily the overriding issue) in 70% to 80% of child protection
cases. It was this reason that had mainly led to the movement of the
Domestic Violence team, from the Policy section of the council, to
Children’s services. The Domestic Violence Practitioners now had a
significant position in Children’s Service and also their work on Domestic
Violence was more child focussed. The Practitioners demonstrated that
they were able to link theory to real life cases by working with Social
Workers who also took the opportunity to call upon their expertise and




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE ADVISORY
COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 17 SEPTEMBER 2012

guidance in dealing with cases where domestic violence was a factor.

Previously in 2011 a best value review had found a lack of co-ordinated
services for women escaping domestic violence. This led to the
establishment of Hearthstone centre for the survivors of Domestic
violence providing support with housing and access to services.

MARAC (Multi agency risk assessment conference) was established in
2008 to enable a co-ordinated multi agency response to cases where
there was risk of significant harm to an individual. MARAC conferences
have, since 2010, become more child focussed and include the
participation of 25 agencies.

The Committee noted the following key points from the presentation on
Domestic Violence.

e DV is a gender based violence — mainly affecting women.

e DV has far reaching impact on families
A positive arrest scheme where the police themselves can charge
the perpetrators without the victims consent is available but rarely
used.

e There is rehabilitation programme where perpetrators are
encouraged in a group setting to talk through values and
understand the impact of their violence. Although, the attendance
of partners at this scheme is small, in certain cases this has
contributed to women feeling safer and more likely to accept
support from agencies.

e There was more awareness in Safeguarding and Support about
violence in teenage relationships and Social Workers are more
aware of the circumstances where teenagers will be more
vulnerable to domestic violence i.e. a teenage girl who has a
much older male partner.

¢ The council were taking part in a three day consultation, through
the Home Office, to review partnership working in cases of
Domestic Violence.

e The Domestic Violence court would be moving to a location in
Tottenham to enable cases to be progressed more efficiently.

e In October the Young Persons advocate, working in the First
Response team, would be working on Domestic Violence cases
involving teenagers.

The Committee learnt that there was still work to be done to challenge
the perceptions about Domestic Violence and educate professionals
further, that Domestic Violence was unacceptable whatever the situation.

Following questions from Committee Members about the contribution of



Page 4

MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE ADVISORY
COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 17 SEPTEMBER 2012

key partners to reducing Domestic Violence such as the Police and
Schools the following information was shared:

e That when Police are attending an incident ,where domestic
violence is reported, they are under obligation to check if there
are children in the household and report this to Children’s
Services. There was also a dialogue sheet compiled for Police
Officers to complete which is aimed at ensuring there is a full
assessment of the Domestic Violence incident. The questions
include, finding out how much exposure to the Domestic Violence
the child may have been subjected to.

e Educating young people about how violence was unacceptable
in both relationships or in the home should start from an early
age and the Children’s service would explore training activities
aimed at young children, as young as 8, and also ensure that
the teachers designated to child protection role were also aware
of this training need .

The Committee thanked both Deirdre Cregan and Michelle Robson for
their insightful presentation.

TEX90. | ANY OTHER BUSINESS

The Committee considered performance information relating to
safeguarding, from the start of the year up to the month of July 2012.

OP 504 (The number of child contacts received) The Committee noted
the increase in contacts received in July and that this could be
attributed to the prominence of the MASH team. Also there was likely to
have been an increase in families moving to the borough in this period.
The Committee were aware that the borough had a high number of
families living in HMQO’s (Houses in Multiple Occupation). Families living
in unsuitable living conditions had additional family life pressures .There
was a short discussion about the safety of children from Roma families
who were often seen living in poor housing conditions. The Committee
noted that Children’s services had a specialist worker working in the
Roma community with families with safeguarding issues. First Response
were beginning to map and list the ROMA families that lived in the
borough. This would further help deal with any safeguarding concerns
and ensure the service were able to better locate the children if needed.
Members were asked to contact the First Response team, in the, first
instance, should they have concerns about the safety of any Roma | All to
children they had seen in their ward. note

The Committee were further asked to note that the increase in contacts
would impact on the completion rate for assessments.

OP383 (Re-referrals within 12 months of the previous referral) The



Page 5

MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE ADVISORY
COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 17 SEPTEMBER 2012

performance stood at 19% against a target of 16%, this was still below
statistical neighbouring borough rates. The reason for re-referral was
thought to be 10 to 11% housing related and similarly could be due to
a significant change in circumstance for the family which they were not in
a position to cope with. The Committee further noted that some cases
were recorded as re-referrals as the FWI system could not support
capturing the appropriate outcome and so instead Social Workers had to
close and re-open the case .The service were considering ways to
improve this irregularity. The Committee agreed that a short analysis of
re-referrals be completed by the Independent member in time for the
November meeting to provide more understanding about the issues | HC
around this performance indicator.

OP368 (Percentage of referrals to children’s social care going on to
initial assessment) The Committee noted that target had been revised so
that the council was aiming to achieve performance levels on par with a
good and excellent services. Members questioned the increase in this
target, given that the previous target levels were not being met. This led
to an understanding being sought on the strategy to increase completion
of initial assessments and the existing reasons for their delay. The
Independent Member questioned the level of detail required in an initial
assessment as some contacts, could upon initial analysis, not require
a detailed initial assessment .The Committee learnt that the advantage
to completing an initial assessment for contacts, meeting the social care
threshold, ensured that the child was seen by a Social Worker. Other
boroughs, may not complete an initial assessment for children meeting
the social care threshold, and would not see the child. The Committee
were further advised of the benefit of completing an initial assessment
comprehensively because it would mean less information was required
for collation at the core assessment stage. The Committee suggested
that these issues be explored by the Independent Member as part of her | HC
audit into initial assessments.

OP380 (Child Protection Visits) the Committee sought an understanding
on why performance had not been close to target in the last three
months, preceding July. The target was set at 95% of children on a
child protection plan visited, and in June 12, the service had completed
76% of required visits. The Committee noted the visits were being made
on time. However between Jan to June, in cases where there were less
pressing issues, the write up of the visit had been completed at a later
date. This had been realised in June and management had advised
Social Workers that they could not mark a visit as being completed if
they had not recorded the outcome of the visit. Hence the figures for
June were well below target but figures for July had shown improvement
and the service could now say with confidence that the visits to families
were accompanied by a record. The Committee were concerned upon
hearing this and reiterated that if a visit was not recorded on the
Framework | system then it could be counted as being made. They were
assured by the diligence of the Acting Head of Safeguarding in
identifying this issue and sought further reassurance that the emphasis
in the service was on quality not quantity. The Acting Deputy Head of




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE ADVISORY
COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 17 SEPTEMBER 2012

Safeguarding explained that she was trying to create a culture in her
management team, that was more confident with using the FWI system
and was encouraging its active use in supervision. This was key to
monitoring that required information was on the system.

HY64 — (Child protection plans lasting 2 years or more) The children’s
service were close to target on this and were aware that there needed
to be close adherence to this target due to the underlying principle that
professionals should be working towards specified outcomes which, if
implemented effectively , should lead to all children not needing to be
subject to a child protection plan within a maximum of 2 years .If this
target was not being met it consequently would lead to questioning the
understanding of the professionals involved, towards facilitating
outcomes for the child.

OP381 — (Children in need visits) The recording issues outlined at
OP380 were also applicable to the performance of this indicator.

TEX91. | EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

The press and public were excluded from the meeting for consideration
of the following item as it contained exempt information as defined in
section 100a of the local Government Act 1972 (as amended by section
12A of the local Government Act 1985) paragraphs 1&2 namely
information relating to an individual, and information likely to reveal the
identity of an individual.

TEX92. | DISABLED CHILDREN AUDITS

The Committee had previously heard about two audits concerning the
care of disabled child and had requested to consider the findings of the
audits in line with their responsibilities for overseeing safeguarding
practice and policy.

The first of the audits was learning based and conducted by the Disabled
Children Policy and Practice review group. It was focussed on a specific
child and involved six agencies reviewing their files in the same
environment and discussing any required learning points on the care
provided to the child. The child’s mother was also interviewed to gain
her input, on the care received by her child. The Committee noted that
this multi agency group had been established for 2 years and were
continually examining and challenging their approach to the care of a
disabled child. The group had already started examining the
safeguarding of disabled children and had previously developed an
action plan which was still relevant and applicable today. Key
stakeholders of the group included an Independent School Head teacher
and, as well as looking at individual cases, the group looked at emerging
themes and how services could respond to these. The audits were also
a method for examining if the agencies really worked well together.




Page 7

MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE ADVISORY
COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 17 SEPTEMBER 2012

The findings of this audit had also been considered by the LSCB quality
assurance sub group this week. The Committee were asked to note the
gaps and learning from the audit exercise which were largely in line with
the proposals outlined in the White Paper (support and Aspiration —
progress and next steps).

The second audit was completed in partnership with the Domestic
Violence Co-ordinator and looked at recent cases referred to the
Disabled Children’s team and the First Response service where the
family of the child is known to both teams.

There were only 6 cases fitting this category, however the learning from
this audit was important and included the need to classify a child as
disabled at the first point of contact with the service, First Response.
The low numbers of disabled children identified as being affected by DV
still warranted it being an area to keep under review because the
experiences of this would have a detrimental impact on the emotional
wellbeing and safety of a disabled child.

The Committee noted that work was underway to identify the children
and young people who have Health “blue folders”, i.e. children who are
known to Social Care but not subject to Child protection plans, but who
have an additional need such as speech and language therapy. The
outcome of this work would be ready for the Committee to consider after | Clerk
December 2012.

The Committee learnt that when completing the audit there was no
existing research to call upon relating to Domestic Violence and disabled
children.

TEX93. | REVIEW OF THE EXTENT TO WHICH THE WELFARE OF YOUNGER
CHILDREN IN A FAMILY IS ADDRESSED WHEN THE PRIMARY
REFERRAL RELATES TO AN OLDER SIBLING.

The Committee had previously asked for an audit to be completed to
find out how the needs of younger siblings were assessed and
addressed, when the presenting issue is the behaviour of an older young
person in the family. The Committee noted that 14% of contacts
received by First Response relate to young people aged between 14-17
and are received from a number of sources including police, schools,
and the Youth Offending service.

There were 7 cases reviewed by the Head of First Response and it was
noted that in every case the family were referred or self referred at a
point of crisis. Work with the families was over a 4 month period with
intensive multi agency contributions, intervention and stabilisation,
followed by ongoing social work allocation. Intervention for these
families at an early stage was key and cases with similar situations
would benefit from the shift in focus to universal and outstanding early
help. The learning from this audit, was obtaining support for the older
sibling including finding an advocate which the young person was able to




Page 8

MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE ADVISORY
COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 17 SEPTEMBER 2012

communicate with such as a youth worker. The shift to early
intervention, by the Children’s service, will in future also help younger
siblings in the family as they will get support from a young age.

TEX94. | EXEMPT ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

There were no items of urgent exempt business.

TEX95. | DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING
22 November 2012 7.30pm.

Joint meeting with Corporate Parenting Committee 29" October 7.30pm.

Cllr James Stewart

Chair



Page 9

MINUTES OF THE JOINT MEETING OF CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY
COMMITTEE &CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 29 OCTOBER 2012

Councillors Allison, Brabazon, Bull, Dogus, Reece, Scott, Solomon, Stennett,

Apologies

Stewart and Waters

Councillor Adamou

Also Present: Libby Blake, Marion Wheeler, Lisa Blundell, Wendy Tomlinson, Moira

Lammond, Geoffrey Burach, Hilary Corrick.

MINUTE ACTON
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY
JCo01 APPOINTMENT OF THE CHAIR

It was agreed that Cllr Stewart chair the Joint meeting of the Corporate
Parenting Advisory Committee and Children’s Safeguarding Policy and
Practice Committee.

JCo2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE(IF ANY)
Apologies for absence were received from Clir Adamou.
JCo3 URGENT BUSINESS
There were no items of urgent business put forward.
JC04 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of Interest put forward.
JCO05 DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/QUESTIONS
There were no deputations, petitions, or questions put forward.
JC06 HALF YEAR PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORTS ON

SAFEGUARDING AND LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN DATA

The Committee considered performance data and trends for an agreed
set of measures relating to contacts, referrals, assessments, child
protection and children looked after.

The agreed set of measures were grouped according to topic and
enclosed at appendix 1, showing monthly data, performance against
target, long term trends and benchmarking data where applicable. Both
the Corporate Parenting Committee and Children’s Safeguarding Policy
and Practice Committee had considered performance information up to
August 2012, in relation to their respective areas, at their recent
meetings. With this in mind, the Chair asked the Assistant Director for
Safeguarding to highlight any changes in performance since these




Page 10

MINUTES OF THE JOINT MEETING OF CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY
COMMITTEE &CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 29 OCTOBER 2012

recent meetings.

The Assistant Director for Safeguarding provided the following key
performance information:

e The downward trend for children becoming looked after
continued. The Committee noted that it was critical for this
indicator to continue in this manner for the service to move
forward with their early help agenda.

e The upward pressure on children placed on child protection plans
was being closely examined and monitored by the service as this
was out of step with statistical neighbours.

e There was a slight upturn in the number of looked after children
being placed in the borough. Although, it was accepted that the
number of looked after children placed outside the borough was
still high.

e The Children’s service were aiming to ensure that all looked after
children had a permanency plan and were continuing to examine
how each department had a role in supporting these plans.

Following queries from the Committee about the performance statistics,
the following information was provided:

e With regards to initial and core assessments not being completed
within timescales, the Committee were assured that all families
would have been seen by a social worker within a certain amount
of time. The Committee were further pointed to the service
comments, included with the performance data, which showed
that there was an improvement from the previous month. The
Committee were assured that this was a high priority for the
Children’s service and they were striving to bring this up to top
quartile performance. The Children’'s Safeguarding Policy and
Practice Committee had also asked their Independent Member,
Hilary Corrick, to undertake a qualitative audit into initial
assessments that were completed out of timescale to understand
the reasons for this. This audit would be considered at their
meeting on November 22" 2012.

e Adoption scorecard - There were a number of key lines of enquiry
which would require a response from different parts of the service.
The Children’s service was actively exploring how to better
streamline the processes involving adoption. It was anticipated
that a review of adoption processes should bring forward ideas for
improvements together with the additional resources from the
Children’s Improvement Board would enable more adoptions to
be made at a quicker pace. The Director of Children’s service
advised that there was a timescale chart being considered by the
Children’s Service Improvement board on a regular basis and this




Page 11

MINUTES OF THE JOINT MEETING OF CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY
COMMITTEE &CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 29 OCTOBER 2012

set out the different timescales the service were working to for
adoption. It was agreed to circulate this chart to the Committee. LB

e The Independent Member of the Children’s Safeguarding Policy
and Practice Committee advised that the key to improving
adoption rates was for adoption to be considered as an early
option when a child comes to care. In her experience, when
children become older it was more difficult to find placements.

e Although, there were a high number of contacts with the
Children’s service, through First Response, they were effectively
able to sift through the contacts and make referrals which were
likely to require an initial assessment and entry into social care.
The director was exploring setting up a new team focussed on
early help that will consider those contacts which do not meet the
social care threshold but where early help through universal
services will help a family not get to a stage where they need
social care intervention. This would be discussed in the later
agenda item.

JCo7 CHILDREN'S SOCIETY CHARTER FOR RUNAWAYS

The Committee noted that one of the recommendations, of the Scrutiny
Review of Children missing from care and from home, was that the
council gave specific consideration to signing up to the Children’s
Society Runaways Charter. The Children’s Society was calling on all
local authorities to publicly sign up to the charter which contained a clear
code for agencies with a duty to protect children who run away or go
missing from home and care. The council already adhered to statutory
guidance and Pan London Missing from Home and Care procedures for
children missing from home and care placements.

The council were working with Barnardos on the Miss U project with a
practitioner funded to provide support to runaways and children at risk.
Therefore, as an existing working relationship with Barnardos existed,
the service would need to gage whether there was a difference in the
work required by the charter and the work that Barnardos did with
missing children.

The merits of signing up to the charter were outlined together with the
caution that the charter could be used in assessments of the Children’s
service and therefore the directorate would need to allocate additional
resources to collate evidence and monitor adherence to the charter .
Taking into account, that the service already had in place existing
processes and procedures to adhere to the statutory and Pan London
guidance, this would be an additional detailed assignment for the service
to resource.

The Committee continued to given assurance about the level of priority



Page 12

MINUTES OF THE JOINT MEETING OF CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY
COMMITTEE &CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 29 OCTOBER 2012

given to children missing from care with an illustration of the information
shared in the weekly meetings between the Cabinet Member for
Children’s Services and Director of the Children’s service.

A member of the Committee advised that children and young people
missing from council children’s homes had been a regular concern
expressed at previous Scrutiny Panel meetings so the close weekly high
level attention given to this issue was welcome. However, the low
numbers of children/young people missing from placements was
questioned as this was believed to have been higher in the past.

In relation to signing up to the charter, the Committee agreed that the
main consideration should be that children are kept safe. It was
reassuring that the Children’s service were following statutory
procedures and was tracking the children and young people that were
going missing. However, as a separate but connected issue, it was felt
that further assurance was needed on the process and risk assessments
in place for children in care taking unauthorised leave from their
placements as the past experience of some members had been that
these children’s whereabouts were predicted, rather than known by the
care homes. These absences were equally as concerning as children
missing from care whose whereabouts was not known. The Committee
agreed that a report come back to the December meeting of Corporate
Parenting Committee advising on the process and risk assessments in
place for children in care taking unauthorised leave from their
placements and also for children missing from care. The report should | MW
also provide a sense of the figures, over the year, for children missing
from care as the figures were lower than previously reported.

The consensus among Committee Members was that the main priority
should be keeping children safe and as statutory guidance and Pan | LB
London procedures were being followed in respect of children missing
from care they were satisfied that adherence to a separate charter, that
would require allocation of additional resources, was not needed.

JCO08 HARINGEY 54000 PROGRAMME

The vision of the Haringey 54000 change programme was: Haringey a
place where children and young people are known to thrive and achieve.
The programme represented a changing relationship between the
Children’s service and families in the borough. The programme would
balance services towards universal and good and outstanding early help
that would sustain families, preventing the need for more costly services.

To achieve the required outcomes, the service was aiming to release
resources currently invested in higher numbers of looked after children
for an earlier offer of help. This would mean shifting the budget from
high cost interventions towards efficient and effective preventative




Page 13

MINUTES OF THE JOINT MEETING OF CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY
COMMITTEE &CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 29 OCTOBER 2012

services. The programme approach being taken to the changes,
required in the service, had been developed in collaboration with
practitioners running programmes in London Authorities.

An explanation was provided of early help and its priorities were set out
as well as the policy guiding this work. It was noted that this was not
limited to the age of the child and could occur at any point in a child’s or
young person’s life. The Children’s service was engaging with users to
find out what early help means to them to properly inform the strategy.

The policy attached was in draft form and an updated version would be
sent out to Committee members. The final policy was expected to be
considered by Cabinet in March. It was important to note that, the | LB
Permanency Policy would work alongside Early Help Policy and would
be about finding permanent families for looked after children so they
spent a less time in care.

A member of the Committee highlighted the significant reductions made
to children’s centres in 2011 as this would need to be factored when
taking forward the offer of early help. Comparisons were made between
Islington council’s offer of children’s centre services and Haringey’s offer.
In response to this, it was pointed out Islington receive higher funding
for early years than Haringey and are in a position spend more on
children’s centres. The Children’s service had been required to make
past reductions to the children’s centres budget as there had not been
the funding in place to continue with the size of the service .The
Children’s service was not excluded from making budget reductions in
the coming financial years and it was also not yet known if there was
flexibility in the DSG grant and EIG funding to spend more on children’s
centres but use of these funding streams would be explored.

Continuing the discussion on children’s centres and their role in early
help to families, the issues listed below were highlighted. The Director of
Children’s services agreed to provide a written response to the
Committee as information relating to budgets and savings would need to
be accessed. LB

e Had there been a review following the 50% reduction in funding to
children’s centres?

e The position on children’s centres access to framework i.

e In the budget reductions to children’s centres in 2011, there had
been a significant budget allocation to external services and it
would be useful to find out how this money was being spent and
monitored.

e A significant proportion of Sure Start money had been top sliced
for family support services and it would be important to find out
the efficacy of the services being delivered as family support
encompassed a number of different services working together.




Page 14

MINUTES OF THE JOINT MEETING OF CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY
COMMITTEE &CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 29 OCTOBER 2012

JC09 MULTI SYSTEMIC TREATMENT PROGRAMME - EDGE OF CARE -
PROGRESS REPORT

Geoffrey Burach was asked by the Assistant Director for Safeguarding to
attend the meeting to present information on Multi Systemic Treatment
(MST) Programme, a DFE funded project. Moira Lamond was also
introduced to the Committee; she was working directly with council on
this initiative aimed at mainstreaming intervention for young people on
the edge of care.

MST was initially developed in the US as a treatment programme for
young people displaying antisocial behaviour and aimed at reducing
youth criminal activity. The outcomes of the programme are cost
savings by decreasing the public cost from youth criminal activity such
as imprisonment, and putting young people into care.

The theoretical basis behind MST examines the factors leading to
delinquent behaviour and involves a therapy team working with the
families. The team target multidiscipline risks in a comprehensive yet
individualised way. The caregiver's co-operation is paramount to the
long term positive outcomes for the child. There will be daily activities for
the parents to complete to change the system in the family and ensure
the intervention successes are sustainable.

There was a contractual relationship between with the council and the
Brandon centre initially for a year for two therapists to work with 9
families. These families demonstrate extreme entrenched behaviour
which statutory services have not been able to work with.

Moira Lammond explained that in practical terms, MST is a home based
therapy with the therapist visiting the household and keeping regular
contact with family for a time limited intervention. The aim is to keep
children and young people with extreme behaviours on the edge of care
at home or out of custody. The intervention can last from 3-5 months and
can range from 35-75 appointments with each family. Examples were
given of the different issues and the types of families that the therapists
dealt will deal with. The recent achievements of the project in Haringey
included:

e 2 children in care coming out of care and returning to their
families

e Positive interventions at school

e One child successful in not getting excluded from school

e A pupil at the Octagon centre had progressed to college
education

e Schools participating in the therapy and working with the
therapist on behavioural plans




Page 15

MINUTES OF THE JOINT MEETING OF CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY
COMMITTEE &CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 29 OCTOBER 2012

The families spoke to the therapist about the different approaches each
statutory agency had when working with them .Also how the necessary
input of statutory services could also make the families feel less in
control.

In response to questions, the Committee learnt that:

e Currently a therapist will work with between 4-5 for families and if
the council wanted to increase the families getting this specific
help they would need to procure additional therapists.

e The work with the families is conducted in the home and there is
no clinic to attend. Although, there is variety of interventions, this
is a pragmatic therapy based on the needs of the family.

e The project had been running for 6 months and the cost of the
intervention was £9.5k per child. Most of the cost for the first year
is funded externally with the remainder of the funding coming from
both Haringey and Waltham Forest council’s.

e The referrals to MST were decided by the Assistant Director for
Safeguarding following consideration at an internal safeguarding
board meeting where high risk, complex, and challenging
behaviours being displayed by families are considered.

e There was linkage with the troubled families’ project and
principles in use were similar and involved intensive work with the
families.

e The Council were fortunate in that the therapist team included a
specialist in substance mis-use, one of only two teams in the
country.

e The therapists were usually trained in clinical psychology or were
Social Workers with a master’'s degree. However, in addition to
their professional qualifications, they were trained using the MST
model before working with families. Successful working with
families was closely related to the MST model.

e The therapist will take over, from the statutory agencies working
with the family but will regularly confer with the agencies about
their work and gain information from them about the family.

The Assistant Director for Safeguarding commented that she had been
impressed at the level of engagement the therapists had displayed and
how quickly they had been able to engage with the chosen families and
begin working in their homes. However, as this was a new project, it
was too early to tell if the changes in behaviour, facilitated by the
therapist, would be sustainable once they left and the family were
transferred back to universal services. The Committee agreed that it

MW/
Clerk




Page 16

MINUTES OF THE JOINT MEETING OF CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY
COMMITTEE &CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 29 OCTOBER 2012

would be useful to get a report back in 6 months time on the work of this
project.

JC10 YOUTH, COMMUNITY AND PARTICIPATION SERVICE OFFER TO
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE ON THE EDGE OF CARE /AT
RISK

The Committee considered a report on the work of the Youth Community
and Participation service intervening and working with young people
and children that were on the edge of care or at risk of offending. This
was a pilot project which targeted young people that did not meet the
criteria to receive a service from First Response but where there was
enough concern about their behaviour and relationship with their families
to refer them to the Youth, Community, Participation services. The
Committee noted the successes of the targeted interventions and the
longer term aim of continuing with this project with a staffing structure
being put in place to enhance this model that would be fully operational
from January 2013.

It was clarified that the cohort of children and young people referred to
the Youth, Community and Participation service did not require the same
high level of care as the young people accessing the MST programme.

Although the Youth, Community and Participation had received £400k in
funding this could still not support a broader youth service offer. The
Youth Community and Participation service would continue as a partial
service providing targeted universal services.

JC11 NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

There were no new items of urgent business.

JC12 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

JC13 NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS

There were no new exempt items of urgent business.

JC14 NEXT MEETING

16" May 2013.

Cllr James Stewart



Page 17

MINUTES OF THE JOINT MEETING OF CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY
COMMITTEE &CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 29 OCTOBER 2012

Chair



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19 Agenda ltem 5

Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Practice Agenda Planhing 2012/13
Date of the | Reports and background information Officer /| Member
meeting leading on the
report
22 Nov 2012
7.30pm CR2
1. Audit on a sample of initial assessments | Hilary Corrick
completed out of timescale.
2. Verbal update on audit on Section 47s Chrissy Austin
which do not go to Conference?
3. Safeguarding Performance Margaret Gallagher
4. Quality Assurance audit report of
recording and management oversight of | Rachel Oakley
statutory social work visits to Children
subject to protection plans
Ayshe to publish on 13 November 2012
10 January 1. Performance data for Safeguarding — Margaret Gallagher
2013 7.30pm standing item
CR2

2. Audit of new referrals to the service
from a random particular week.

3. Work was underway to identify the
children and young people who have
Health “blue folders”, i.e. children who
are known to Social Care but not
subject to Child protection plans, but
who have an additional need such as
speech and language therapy. The
outcome of this work would be ready for
the Committee to consider after
December 2012.

4. Early Intervention service- The
Committee would like to invite Ros
Cooke, Head of Early Years to come
and talk about the support provided for
children in need in Children’s Centres.
The committee are keen that Children
services places are utilised as this is
seen as a key area for supporting
families and stopping children becoming
subject to protection plans and coming

Independent
Member/Hilary
Corrick

Phil Dileo/Janette
Brand

Ros Cooke/Marion
Wheeler

Ayshe Simsek Ext 2929




Page 20

Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Practice Agenda Planning 2012/13

Date of the | Reports and background information Officer /| Member
meeting leading on the
report
into care.
5. Draft Council report from Safeguarding
and Corporate Parenting Ayshe Simsek
Ayshe to publish agenda on 02 January
2013
18 March 1. Performance data for Safeguarding —
2013 7.30pm standing item (Independent Member
CR2 view and scrutiny of performance into

Contacts, Referrals, Assessments and
Child Protection has been important to
committee understanding the data and
deciding if there are any underlying
safeguarding issues that need to be
explored.)

2. Areport on the work with families who
have no recourse to public funds,

3. Areport on interface between
Safeguarding and other key partner
agencies which provides an
understanding of their communication
lines.

4. Report back on the operation of the
MASH.

5. Report back on cases that were subject
to planning where the parent has
substance mis-use issues. This was to
be covered in an audit by Adult services
and findings reported back to
committee.

6. Exploring the interface between Mental
Health services and Safeguarding
services in cases which are subject to
child protection planning

Ayshe to publish Agenda on 08 March 2013

Margaret Gallagher

Chrissy Austin

Marion Wheeler

Chrissy Austin

Hilary Corrick

Hilary Corrick

Ayshe Simsek Ext 2929




Page 21

Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Practice Agenda Planning 2012/13

Date of the | Reports and background information Officer /| Member
meeting leading on the
report
09 May 2013 | 1. Performance Margaret Gallagher
7.30pm CR2
Ayshe to publish Agenda on 01 May 2013
16 May 2013 | Joint meeting with Corporate Parenting
7.30pm
Council Agenda to be published on 09 May 2013
Chamber

Suggestions for committee members to get more of an understanding how
different areas of safeguarding services work by visiting teams and watching

them in action.

Looking at how lessons can be learnt from Serious Case Reviews in particular
looking at “looking at lessons learnt” a key section from the SCR on baby
Peter and how we can show that the lessons have been integrated into the
work of the service (ltem to be added)

Short analysis of re-referrals (agreed 17.09.2012) Hilary Corrick, to be added.

Ayshe Simsek Ext 2929




Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



X

=

Page 23 Agenda ltem 6

Haringey
Children’s Safeguarding
Report for: Policy and Practice Item
P ) Committee 22 November | Number:
2012
Title: Performance Assessment — Year to October 2012 incorporating
) updated comparative data for 2011/12
Report .
Authorised by: Marion Wheeler/ Eve Pelekanos
Lead Officer: Margaret Gallagher / Richard Hutton

Ward(s) affected:

All

Report for Key/Non Key Decision:

NA

1. Introduction

This report sets out performance data and trends for an agreed set of measures relating

to:

e Children and Families - Contacts, referrals and assessments and Child Protection
(these measures are reported to the Safeguarding Policy and Practice Committee)

Appendix 1 provides further detail in the form of tables and graphs for each of the agreed
measures, grouped by topic, showing monthly data, performance against target, long term
trends and benchmarking where applicable. It also contains performance and service
comments for each area to provide context.



Page 24

2. Performance Highlights/ Key Messages

2.1. Contacts, Referrals and Assessments and Child Protection

There has been an increase in the number of contacts received in October (over 100
more contacts than in September). There were 608 contacts bringing levels back to
those seen earlier in the year. There remains an increasing trend with a 5% increase
in contacts compared with the same period in 2011.

Referrals have also increased slightly in October but there remains a reducing trend in
the number of referrals. Haringey’s rate (per 10,000 population) of referrals is
historically below that of statistical neighbours. In 2011/12 Haringey’s annual rate of
referrals was 436 per 10,000 population compared with 541 for our statistical
neighbours. In Haringey a higher proportion of referrals to children’s social care go
onto an initial assessment. In the 2011/12 Children in Need Census 92% of Haringey’s
children went on to receive an initial assessment compared with 79% for our statistical
neighbours. Haringey’s rate of re-referrals within 12 months of the previous referral
at 17% is in line with our statistical neighbour rate 2011/12.

There were 327 children subject to a child protection plan at October. This is
equivalent to a rate of 57 per 10,000 children living in the borough, more than a third
higher than our statistical neighbour average for 2011/12 of 40 and the England rate of
38. The number of children subject to a plan is increasing, there are 58 more children
on a plan than at this time last year. There has been a considerable increase in the
number of children becoming subject to a plan and a significant decrease in the
number ceasing to be subject to a plan, a net increase of 43 in the year to October.

Indicators around child protection plans lasting 2 years or more and children
becoming the subject of a Child Protection Plan for a second or subsequent
time are on target and compare favourably to statistical neighbours. 27% or 77
children were subject of a plan at 31 March for between 1 and 2 years compared with
19% statistical neighbour average and 17.2% in England, Haringey percentage is the
highest in London and the 3" highest in the country behind Bath and Wokingham.
Haringey’s ranking was about average in London for those subject to a plan for over 2
years and for between 6 months and 1 year.

Performance on initial assessments carried out in 10 days improved to 70% in
October, below our revised 80% target. Haringey’s performance in 2011/12 of 67%
was below that of our statistical neighbour average of 82% and England position at
77%.

There was a huge improvement in performance in October with 80% of Core
assessments completed in timescale (35 working days) although this position
remains below the revised 85% tar%et. Analysis of 2011/12 Children in Need published
data found that Haringey had the 4™ highest ranking in London for core assessments
taking 61 days plus with 14% of cores taking more than 61 days to complete
compared to a statistical neighbour average of 5% and 9% for England.



Page 25

= Sustained improvement in line with the service focus on frequency, quality of visiting
and visit recording resulted in 93% of Child Protection visits completed to timescale
in the month of October, just below the 95% target. Children in Need visits have also
improved considerably in recent months and now stand at 89% which although below
the target is the best performance level all year and a big improvement on the peak of
82% achieved in 2011/12.

= 98% of child protection cases were reviewed within timescales in the year to
October. The shortfall amounted to 4 cases 1 of which was done but out of time, 1 was
an administration error by an agency chair and the other case (including a sibling)
related to a family who were out of the country.

3. Appendices

= Appendix 1: Performance Analysis and Benchmarking for:
o Contact, Referrals & Assessments and Child Protection

Page 3 of 3



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 27

oo bt TR TN I et
Buisn asuabijieiu) sseuisng
pue ABajeng Aq peonpold

A8

‘suesw ajdwis aJe podel siyy Ul Bupewyouaq Joy papiroid sebeloae syl "ULUOMSPUBAA pue

18404 Weylep Ylemyinog ‘weysime ‘Yieque ‘uoibulis| ‘weyin. pue ypwisiswweH ‘AsuoeH ‘Yomussin) ‘uopholn) sesudwos
pue seoIAIeS §,UIP|IYD O3 Ajleoyoads Buneas uoneuiloul oiydeibowsp-o100s uo paseq paisiO AQ paulep st dnoib sinoqyubiaN
[eonsielg s,Aebuiey ‘sinoqubeN feonsnels s,Aebulier Jo/pue uopuoT ‘pueibul Joj papirosd st Bupewyousg ‘eijqe|ien. aiauyp

SUSIA PaaN Ul usIpiiyD  18edO

SHSIA uonod101d PHuD 08edO

3w} JusnNbasqns 10 PuOJas B IO} Ue|d U01198101d PIIYD Jo 108lgns ay3 Buiwooseq usipjiyo jo ebejusoied s9g do
8J0W J0 sJesh g Bunse| suejq Uuonos10id PIUD  YOAH

ueid g9 e uo AsBuiiel Jo 1no pasow uaupiyy zzydo

ueld 49 e uo AebBuueH o1 Buiaow usupiyd  1zydo

poued auy ut uejd 40 e 03 309[gns Buises) usipliud gLy dO

pouied auy Ui ueld 4O € 03 308lgng Buwooeg usipiyD LIy O

ueid uonosloid ppyd e 01 108lgns uaipiiyD 88edo

uoi99310id PIIYD

sAep BuplOM GE UIYIM INO PaLLIBO 818M JBY] 818D [BID0S S,USIP|IYD IO} SIUSLISSSSSE 8100 Jo abejusoled  09dO
[ediages o sAep Buppiom Of UIYHM N0 PaLLIED 818D [BI00S S,USIP|ILD JOJ SJUBLUSSOSSE [Bliul JO 8brlusoisd  6SAH
[e1ojo1 snolasld aul JO SYIUOW gL Uiypm sjessjel-ay  £88do

juswissasse [eniuf 0} uo Buioh s.ied [B100S S,UsIPIUD 01 S[EBal Jo 8bejuadiad 898dO

dod 0p0‘01t 4ed aJeod [e100s S,ULIp|IYD O} S[BLIB)SL JO 1R 8] B0 L PdO

81eD [BIO0S S,UBIPJIYD 0} S[eBa JO Jequinu 8yl oLpdO

paABo8s S10BIL0D PIIYD JO Jaquunu 8y)  $0sdo

SJUBLLISSASSY pue sjeusjey ‘S10BI0)D

Sjusquoyp

PIIUD pue SjusLISSeSSY R S[elsjey ‘1orjuo) - Bupjewyouag pue sisAjeuy aouewIoped

KaBiunaep




Page 28

'l

\\ (EMZI0Z TUALOZ  LL0IOZ 016002 : PR Ry TE 1 50 D s N U 1Y g ] P e R e b by e /_
. S | FiRE: 1 ;
i1 5 S
b S B N A Alu
;o . 4 | oo " ebL'y | 2229 | 9556 |ssepL = = KeBuieH
w B 1} oooo's eeq
; . . o008 v - ™ o ™o ) <] S ,
: L ooo'oL e = = Q 5 2 S |Ix © (srmek g 1s8)
| 2 gi | 8 | 2| 2| 8| 8|2 |3 B
: | [ oooe A = = = = 8 w < pual} wJisi buon
: 0T poo'wt hod ~ i e
; 000'st

. "paseslIou] 9ABY S10BIUOO 810j8leU]
Pue pauinias mou aAey Asy | “Aepljoy uo Buleq S|ooyds uj UOHRENION]) [BUOSESS 0} 8NP SBM UIUOW S| S]OBIUOD Ul 9SBSI08P OUj |

: JUBLULIOY) B0IAISS

“Jeah 1sef o sy} G6°S Ajuo yum
paJedwod J5qo10Q 0} Udy pouad sy} ul SIOBII0D g |y Usaq sARY aley] -

PO @ ow e  w JUBWILIOT) 60UBLIION6
o s ER: BE: E
; 1 el = T (1pef snoie.d)
| . - , | 00k 58¢ L% 058 9re oc9 809 Aoburrery
i | ik | g (N = i
: ! ! 1} 002 e o AL e
, “ ER BR | m ? _ £ .15 < |8 Jeaj snolneiy
4 | 1 o | : iy = 7 L par i
4 o | 14 | o dr00E B
ER BR ] Au
M M | [ .ﬁ_ | m L oov m”_-.mmv 809 161 8¥S £959 619 1S9 Aebuney
=8 ! 1
[ | .. | -4 ;
| & 2 | L 005 14 : ‘
| w w g m e e S 2 g (suwows g ise))
- ] - L l-l. i )h’ h- hr _.'
i | 009 W - S RO R S %  Pue juedey
S :

POAIGOBI S10BI0D PIIYo Jo Jequinu oY) v0sdO




€1

EL2L0C  ZIHL0Z L1002 OL/BOOZ

Page 29

1 X x T 0
§ i i 1 - | ¥ 2
} ; 4 | | oot : o 75 185 8rS 16V o6y | O eey pueibuz
COR e { - ooz i B3]
| | | 1] i J LpS 209 769 AZS) €L |V |, INOqUBIEN [EONSHEIS
| ER (o Aug | 208 | oev | 1S | 19 - - 818y AsbuLiel
) bl [ B®Q | y911 | 605z | 850z | vaee | - - |E 1equiny AeBuiep
Voo e B e me e
V' oo = = 2 = 3 s g g (sse0k g 15@))
- 8 W g > = = 3 3 pusi} uuel Buo
008 @ o = =] & PR ;
‘sAepijoy jooyos| |
WO S|O0YOS 8Y} JO UIN]SL Y] S109|Ja4 S[eLIjel Ul asea.loul sy ‘Ajejeudoidde spoejuoo 1sodubis 01 sanunuod Buussios 1sngoy]| |

JUBLILLOY 8JIAISS

'sinoqubisu [eonsnels Jo
| ¥eul mojeq Ajleouiolsty si sjeuisyal jo (uoneindod poo‘oL Jed) skl s,Aeburiey -
s "S1e8A JUB081 ISAO PEONPaI SBY S{BLISJSI JO 81BI PUE JaquInu 8y -
gebo  Zides  aboy oz gtune o zidew o 1esh wmm_ YPE L UUM paledwod yg1°L st [B10} 81EP 0} Jeak 18qolaQ) ay] -

. | | L | JUeLILLIOD eduBLIIOMed

fuo | 8 | se | ve | e | e | ve | o1/ Aebulseyy
eleq

«©
©
—
)
(s
—
N~
(322
—
<
=]
-
«©
©
=
o
(2]
=

lequinN Aebuuen

 (syow 9 15e)
. pues juedey

Aoy | V/N

w6
olyea)
2L-190
" |21-deg
Zi-6ny
Z-inr
gL-unp
gh-fey

dod 00001 .,R_ 8Jed _m_oom s cEEEo 01 sjaie}e. Jo ejel 8y] 20140
8Jed [Bjo0s s,UsIp|Iyo 01 S[BAe}el JO Jaquinu 8y} OLydo




Page 30

vl

7 )
\ €1/210g  Zi/0g 110102 01/6002

60/8002  B0/LO0Z
™

g Ot %0

'

- %001

%021

- %SL %SL %69 - = ) pueibuz
s %22 - - - - | uopuoy
- %18 %6.L %YL - - ¥ |smnoqubiep jeonsnels
NUQ
BlEg %96 %26 | %P8 - - %SGS KebBuneH
n SN [ n n 2
gl 3|1 818|888 =  (smeok g ysm)
E W S = o L B m S 2] puen uue; buoy
; o @ n ot (=] nQa T

'ss900.d (HSVYI) gnH BuiprenBejes Aousby BN ey} pue Bulueslos 1SNGO 0} 8NP SI /| O} [B118481 WO} UOISIBAUD yBIlYy 8y )

WUBWWOY) 80IAI8S

% 18 sem abesane snoqubleN 1eonsiels z1/4 10z eul -
‘pue|bul 10§ %G, 01 paredwiod AebBule ul Juswssesse
fetjiul UB 0JUO JUBM UBIPIIYD JO %26 JeUl PUNO) SNSUS) PBdN Ul USIPIYD Z1/1 102 BYL-
"SUYIUOW G ISB| 8U} JO { 10} BSED BU} UBBQ SBY SIY) AIfensnun 94001 Peeoxe ued Jojedipul].

AR giL-deg ; 21-bny i ALY gr-uer - aken . SILU} SOUWIBWIOS JBY) SUBBL SIY] "YIUOW SNOIASID B Ul POUEIS [BiI819) B WO POUSWILIOD
7 ] i i '3 {20 9ABY ABUI JUSLISSASSE [RINUI SU) JSASMOY ‘UILOW BUL Ul PBABO3 S[BISIS] 1O JSqUINU o Ag
| E i b %02 POPIAIP SIUBWSSOSSE [BI}{UI PA3RIdLIOD JO JBQUNU B} UO PISEY S| UONEBINDED AJQILoW oY | -
1 SRt JUSWILIOY) 8oUBLIOHSY
i | 7
! %09
m Auo
%8| pieq | BVEH | %SHL | %OVL | %2L | %20k | %19 febuirey
L %004
P | & m g m. Z 3 £ g z (Suyuous g yse)
o |23 5 LR | 5| R & | &[] rueniesey

"0600 | POOIXS SOUIISLLOS LIBD JOIBDIPUI BY) OS LuoW snoiaeid & Ul POUIEIS [LIB6) B LLIOL. PESUBLILLOD BABY ABLU JUSLUSSSSSE
feIHUL SUL "YIUOWI B} Ul PaAISDS: S[ELIBIRI JO JegLUNU oL} Ag PEPIAIP PelejdLioD SIUSLISSSSE JEIUl PEL OUM USIPIUD JO J6GUINU 8U) UO PESEq S! LUONBINOED 8U ]
Jusssesse (eiyul 0} uo Bulob aseo [e190S S,uBIPHIUD O} S[eLIe)ed Jo eBrjussIed 89Ed0




Page 31

St

L2102 ,N—\r&m . —rd—om ;
> T ] %0
|
2 . S %9z | %9z = %eZ | wye (O puejbuz
¢ B
| q | o = %LL | %6l - %LL | %Sl |V [sunoqybien jeonysnels
— i | s & %9l | %l - - - - -— Jebie; AeBulety
1 = _m { g
Vo e |eaquy| s | %ot | wer | - - - KeBuriey
O O %sZ E W & 2 M 8y m m =1 zl (sreak g isu)
s ® 3 e e &2 S |2 |  puss uusy Buor
o408 o @ o = 1 o & 8 | Sk
“YIUOLL UO Yjuow psjou spuai) pue AJUIuoLU Pasiuinios aie sjeisslo. oy
usuiwo) eoinies
TR0 zides  gbny  zider glunr g-Aew 18Q0100 Ul S[eAIBISI 891 JO INO SfR.LIBISI-8) GZ 0} 9jeje4 sebriusdie -
: s I8 H Y "21/1102 Ut Aleuoneu papiodss esoyy ueyy
! W Jamo| Inq sinoqubieu (eansnels ino Aq pspoda. 9SOy} 0 JB|ILLIS S1e SIBAST -
: JUBWIUOY) 8oUBLWIOMS ]
: i 3  + §—
‘ : ! %91 | %9t | %9 | %9t | %9l | %Ot | 1068 Aobuer
il i L oGt
— —_— w— - il %SE | %9L | %eT | w8t | %L | %ot KabuieH
- %02 mw__ m .M W £ nm.. m o .mn (syiuow g ise])
[0 0 ol A b i
I i S S S S e o e R

feseye1 snojaed ey JO SUIUOW g UIYum sjeasiel-oy £88do




Page 32

9l

€1/2302 [A%i814

L1/0L0 :
, %0
. L o0t - %Ll | %Ll | %9. - = 0 pugibuz
s o b w0z
] e - %28 | %E8 | %8 - - V |sinoqubrep (eonsiers
g | %0Y %08 | %0L | %0. S S = - 1061 Asbuler
| DG
P L %0L | %.9 | %99 | - - i febBuliey
— F %0 ) n R (%] (%) R~ ¥ e
O b 9 ] PR 8 T e B {sseefl g ism)
N S S L m | 3 |€]| puenuus; Buo
%06 o 0 o & @ 8 (e b

“J9QUISAON Ul J8yuiny souewLIofed dA0IdW PINOYS YOIYM JOGQUISAON PIW AQ Z O} LIUOW ISB| 2| WO} JoyLIny peonpal sey
SJUBWISSASSE 9)8|dWo0Ul JO JSGWINU BY | "YIUOW 1SB| 8U} J8A0 SBY J Yolum 2.nbiy iyl 9A0Idwi 0 801AI8S B} SSOIOE SeNUILIOD IO

L

eL-ung

JUSLIWOY) 80IAI8S

\
¥
i
1
i
H
i
]

2400 zi-des  gi-Bny FARULE

(21/1102 W %29)
sinoqybiau (BO1ISHE]S N0 JO 9SO} MOJSq 81 SBAS| 8ouBLUIopad JusLIND -
21-Aen

: %0 "1961B] 95,08 pPasine. 8y} Mojaq SuleLIS) NG J8go1n0
- %01 Ui paacsduil sAep QL Ul INO PBLUED SIUSWISSSSSE [BIHUI UO SOUBULIONS -
- %0z UBlitN0)) eouBLIIOed

%08
L aop o %08 | %08 | %08 | %08 | %08 | %08 | 10618 Aoburier
% | pey | %0z | %o | wso | wis | wos | was AebBuyiey

b %09
e \EF | 8§ | & | E|E|§|F |a| @ (euwowssm

— L = e 1 A 2 e l.u. ek

e fEB R ] ml ] BRI ST | Pesaesy

"Z10Z J8QUIBAON/ISGOIA() Wl ‘SUAIISI SNSUSD NIO UC Peseq ‘etep siyl ysiiand o} spusiul 340 BYJ, "MOIASH OIUNN
a1 4o sBuipul 8y} yum euy Ul ‘pLodsl pue PBMSESLL 64 {IM UONSICLLIOD JUSLISSASSE O [EL9J61 oL UsYE] SABD Bupom Jo UoHNALISIP B4 Spousd 8Xmny uj

[e110)01 JO SABD BUDLIOM (O UIYNM INO PBILIED BJET [BID0S S,UBIPIIUD JO) SIUBLUSSESSE [BHIUI JO 8bEIUBDI8d  6GAH




Page 33

L}

€1/2102  21/1102 :I@ou 0L/6002 608002  80/X002

. 3 T
- |
)

<]
<o
<0 |
1
o

S %LL | %SL | %eL | %8L | wos | O pueibuz
S %8. = %EL | %08 | %6L |@ uopuo7
o %28 | %E8 | 6L | %LB | %lL |V |sinoqyblen /eonsnels
%G8 | %0. | %0L | %E9 | %98 | %Ubv. | = Jobie; Asbuuel
pey %69 | %99 | %E€9 | %.lP - %¥8 KeBuieH
ny n N n n . XA
E 3 = = S m m S = {s1eeA g 1sm)
23 g S S S S = |2| puesn uusy Buon
w " ek o = : .

“Jaypny souewiopad Bunurod uid uy palsisse sey (001 douBLLIOLEd Yoom pIlW B JO uoIsiAoId By “Jsuuew

Ajpwy e ul pajejduioo aJe sjusISSesSe BULINSUS 0} JUSLURWILLOO PANUIUOD 89IAIBS B} S)o8|al sourwIopad percidil %32z 8y

2P0 zi-des  zibny gLne gyunp gi-Aeny

JUSWWIOY 8diAleS

‘soueuIopied syjuow snoinsid

] : %0 8y} uo ewsnoidu Big e 1nq 19611 Mojeq pue sinogybieu [eonsSIEe]S INO
m - %0t | O Yeyl mojaq Si 8[eISaLLIN Ui PoIS|dIOD SJUSLUSSISSE 840 UO SOUBLLLIOUS -
s - %02 JUWIWI0Y 6oUBWIoLad
St | [ %oy € | %S8 | %s8 | %58 | %S8 | %S8 | %58 |- 196181 Aobuyer
: L %09

u W L oos | PBH | %08 | %8S | %/9 | %99 | %tz | %3l | KeBuirey

u F%0. } ool = e =
s =
= - = = — il 25 = o e 5 S pusy Juedsey

m»mv BupIom gg uIyHm no vo_tmo SIOM By} 8JeD [B100S w.cohu__;o 10} SJUBLUSSOSSE 8109 jo ebejusdisd (Q9do




Page 34

8l

gleLoz eifiiog
q - 000D}
i ge | 6g g 75 Zz |0 Jod ey pusibing
A 4 j : 00001 +8d ejpy
4 i or i i r 88 |V | sinoqubien ansners
4 i 000°0}
m “ s 6v 99 09 ) ) 18d ejey AebuueH
i 4 _ JEQUINN G
i g AUG 62z | saz | ure | @z | o B, noguBeN Poenee
] BQ | sze | vez | oze | vez | es1 | ze2 g sequny AsBurer
n n S e e
m J1.8 m 2 m 8 5 (sumek g 158))
! =4 g 5 = = _..wa pueJ; wuei Buon
iiiiii ~ 0L w n - o 2

e —

‘porusus|dwi aie asauy)
sieudoidde aie sue|d NID 910U “MBIASS PUB UOIBHNSUOD Y40 BIA 90e(d Ul SI [04U00 Ayren "enssi siy} Jo eieme S| 80IAI8S Bl |

JUBWIWIOYD 8J1AIBS
. . "sbesene Jnoqubieu [eonsiiels ino ueu Jeybiy pay) e
2P0 zides  ziBny  zir  ziune  2i-ken uey} 8Jow si yoiym uoneindod ppp‘'0L Jod /G JO 81kl B 0} Jusfeanbs si siy| -
= = [ IM E “ [ R JUBLIWOY) edueLiiojey
_ 1 a4 °q | L oL
_ j 1 '3 | s | 15 | e | ss | 2 | oo 90G0f
_ L” g | h [ [ 02 Aluo Jod eyey AsbuleH
_ 3 _ m ~ i foe B0 | s2e | s2e | ez | cie | 662 | ee2 sequuiny AaBuey
: {08 for
| 'd i1 m m i i o N e 3 (suauow 9 yse))
S 09

dod 0000} 4ed uejd uoposjosd p|IYd € 0} J09[aNS USIPHIYD JO 8381 By 28880
ueyd uopoejoud piiyo e 03 eiqns uaipiyD 88edo




Page 35

61

s

g€

9c

&l

X ese8ouf JeN
™ sunoqybieN reansyels

8vc-

e

9ce-

v6L-

£81-

(buisesa)
sinogybieN 181s

0S¢

(1) 24

19¢

0ce

G614

{Buiuooeq,

sinoqubieN 1818

34

9¢-

9c

eseesouf
18N Asburiery

oL

€lLe-

80¢€-

(Buiseso) AeBuie) .

L

~
N

¥

0
(]

{Bunuooeq) AebureH

elzioe

cl/Liog

LL/0L02

0l/6002

| 60rg002

80/2002

pueJ; wie} Buo

.m..n 0 ...AEw.i 9158

anoQe se

poued ey u; ued uonoejoid piIyd & 03 Joelq

EoE,Eoo,oowEow

‘(ieaA 1s€| SR SIYY £0Z WON UMOP g9l) ueid B 0} 108lgns sq 0} Buisess
USIpjIyo JO Jequunu 8y} U osesiosp uedniubls B ussq osje sey aley] -
(1reah 1se1 W SIYL 2G| Yuim paseduwiod

1800300 0} Jesh suy ui 202) ueld uonosiold plyo e 0} 198lgns Buiwoosq|
UaJpJiyd JO Joaquunu 8y} Uj 8SBS.IOUI S|JRISPISUOD B USaq SBY aiey -

U8 W0 8oUBWIIoLSH

oc

a1

a1

.- 16N Asbupiery

osea.louf |

Auo
Bleg

61-

(Buiseeo) AebBulien

o
<

o
<t

(Buiwooeq) Aebuery

§3

2l-1R0

cl-inr

gL-unp

ZL-fep

x (sywow g ysu))
2 pues jussey

poued ey u) ueid uonosiold piiyd e 0} Joelgns Buises) uePYD £y JO

ns Buiuiooeg ueIPID Ly 4O |




Page 36

oLt

oF 08

e . - - ) - 85B6IoU]
b &t se sl 16N Aebuuiery
g-
oi- Auo oL- ce- - S - - | no Buinow) Aebuiien

—i0

- 0L =g 1% b - - = S (u1 Buirow) AeBupren
o o - 8 n n - S S y
ekl 2 a8 8 g |3 (s1004 g 15w)
or 4 w g S g g 3 pues wie} BuoT
s w N -, o -5

‘8|qejieae aq jou Aew suondo
Buisnoy aseym sybnoiog Jeylo Woly Jasuel) 0} SSSED 10§ sisenbel ul ssealoul ue 8q Aew assy) pajoadxa si i ‘'suoneiony Buisnoy

200 zides  ziBny

zine Jrunp

03 8nQ "ployse.y; sjeudoidde Joj SOHA/E9IAISS JO PEBH BU3 AQ PaUSBIOS AJISNGO BB SBOUBIBHUOD) Ul J8JSUBJ) IO S1Sanbal |y

juswiwog edinles

(=]
-
i

T

JUBWIUIOY) BoUBWIOeg

-~

mmwm\,ut\
16N Aebuiier

Ao

eleg

(sno Buinow) Aebuiey

Vo]

™

N

©0

(w Buirow) AeBuiieH

@ 0 ¢ N O é f @ @

2L-10

21-deg

_8 L-Bry

ei-nr

gl-unp

Zi-Aey

Aoy

- (suwous g 15w)
. puseij ueoey

=]
-

ueid uopoejoid pjIyd & uo AsBulieH Jo no peAow ueIpIyD ZZrdo

ue|d uonosyoud pjiyo e uo Asbuirey o3 Buirow ueipiyd 1Zydo




Page 37

B2z 2iLioz  L1ol02 016002 60/B00Z 80/.002

%00 ;
3 ! 3 e - | woe | %oe | wes | wes | wes | O pueibuz
i b | ] |
| = 3 __ - %0F C %G’ = o %SL | %L9 |® vopuo7
- (] | O - %09
Wi v dm_ e - %GL | %98 | %SL | %26 | %88 |V |smoqybiey ponsiers
v 1 v |
i - _ m v Ewoo [ 1 %0°L | %09 | %56 | %0G | %0S | %0G | = 1068 AoBuLers
- - %021
e | BaWY | %6°L | %Y | %8S | %6'9L| %ET | %90 AeBuyeH
: e ) R 0L [ s
4 - %091 Wm m =2 m W m m .mn ~ (sseek g 158))
— . ; S S bt a uaJy wue) Buo
%081 m N = - S S P . uof

‘syjuow g Joj 8oeld ul usaq sey ueld B usym |IBIBp Ul pamaines 8. sueid uonosiold PlIyYD 18U} SINSUS O} WSISAS
e Buidoisasp aue sisBeuew ‘Ajiwe) [enpiaipu; ue loj ssaooud Bupjew uoistosp sieudoidde ue si awi Jo yibusy siyy Joy ueid uoios10id
PIIUD B YOIym Ul SBSBD SLIOS SJe 348U} I1S|IYA "Yiuow ised sy} ul uasi sey Jojeolpu) souewopad siy) Jey; aieme ale siebeuew Iousg

WBWLWOY 83IAI8S

-‘obeiane Inoqubisu [eonsnels no

o1 Alqeinone) saredwoo pue 196iey 9,/ 8U3 Jeau si uosod alep oy Jeak ay) -

2P0 Zides  zibBny  ziAa Zi-unp  Zi-fen

E ¥ %0 T a—
w | pm. e jusliIo) 8dUBLLIONe
1 s %02 | %02 | %oz | %oz | woz | %02 | = 19621 Aobuiers
i ) 1’0
3 | [ %8 |JequiY | %8'El | %L | %eLL | %L %501 AeBuley
L %01 =
%21 WW 0 W T S - R = (syyuow g 1sv)
1) [ [ =l .."l I-D
wpi = - L 2 = B pues; Jueoey
e ! %8l

‘auui} Juenbasqns pue PUOJSS B 10} UEld UONISI0Id PIIYD B 4O 10elgns sy} Buiuoseq uaipjiud Jo 1euy)
opisBuofe 18 PSX00| 8q PINOYS SOUBLLIOLS "SIESA OM] JO LUNWIXEW B UJU3iM UB|d UORDSI0IG PIYD B JO 108lqns ey oq 0} Buipasu 1ou USIP|IUo (& O} Pes) PInoys
‘Aieanoays pejuaweidwl §i ‘YOIUM SBLLIOOING paljjoeds spremol Buppiom eq pinoys seuoissejoud jeuy aidiaupd Buikpepun eyl s1oeyal iy | ‘sieak aiow Jo omy

4o} ued v 0} J00fgns usaq pey oym pouad eus uiyym ueld uonosiosd Py B of Joelgns
e : 80w Jo ssesk Z Bupse| sueld uonoeloid PIYD  FOAH.

8q 0} pasesd oym usIpILo Jo abejusdiad By} SBINSEaLU JOTEDIDUI S|




..,,,. _,... | ,. ,,
| I LW oy - %yLL| - - %S | weelL | & vopuo7| |
“ q 8 _,,
; _ : _ L %0 - WLTL | %TTL | BGEL | %L | %LEL |V |smogybleN eonsnels| |
- B i

F 08 %0°0L | %0°0L | %0°0L | %0°0) | %070k | %004 | mm Jobie ] Aobuier
; - o b %001 I
! uesln | %E'9 | %S0L | %06 = > - KebBuuen| |

‘ - \v4 %0°2L
v ] < M n n n N n I

: ] L %0'wl WW m 2 M m m 3 = (sumeA g 158))
— - <

! = = it < ueJ} wiey buo

e e S———— Y\ m o o a w w U hﬂ u J

"AuesSse08U Se PaIspISUOD U9aq SBY 90USI9JU0D UONDS8I0Id PIIYD B 10} PaaU U} PUE PSMIOASI

useq aney sueld NIO 10} SPIOYSaIY} 910UM SBSED JO BUnIPNE 1SNQOJ O Pasul S asU S| “iom se AJouyine mau sy u pajebisul

si uejd uonosioud pliyd e pue ‘Ajioyine [e00] Meu B 0} panow eney Afiue) 8yl pue ‘Ajoyne [e00] Jeyioue u eoed Ul useq Ajsnoiraid}
sey uejd uonoajoud plyo B yolym Ul SesED JO Jequinu JuedlIubls e JUNoooE Olul 9)E) JOU SSOP ¥ SE SISB] [BUOIEU B U0 Pajelsiopun
aq 0} Aj@yi| I J03edIpUl BoUBULIONAd SIU} JBY} 910U OS[e Pinom sieBeuew J0IUSS "8SED SIU} JO ABB1R.AS JusWwaAodwl SIoMaseD

9y} Jo ped se ‘pausAu0d Buleq 80UBIBJUOD UOKRVBI0Id PIIYO B LSSQ SBY SISED 9SBY} JO SLOS Ul SLUODINO 8Y] PUB ‘M8IASI JO 108lans
U8 8ABY SOSED [ENPIAIPUI JO JSQLUNU Y "J0JEDIPUI 8ouBLLIOMSd SiU} Ul JuSWaAOW piemdn Juadsl sy} Jo aieme aJe siebeuepy Jolusg

Page 38

Wewiwoy eoiAles

ZI-BO  zideg  ZiBny  Zianp  Ziunp ZpeRepy

T s - [ 13 R JUSWIWO) esuewioped
4 3 R b ) :
| I 3§ -
¢ | =5 ¢ %0L | %0L | %0L | %0L | %0t | %0 | = J0612] Aobuiser
b
1 L wg | UBBID |0l | - | wbs | %S6 | %SL | %oE Kebuiien
%8
E m I NS S B (supuow g 1se)
) [ h— I.-. [
a— — - | — -— %01 = - = X B o o e s puej jusdey
- - e %21

- 8w Juenbesqns Jo Puooes e Ioj UB|d UOH98I04d PIYD Jo Joelgns eyy Buiwoseq uesp|iyo jo ebejusdied s9g dO J



Page 39

gLt

%v'el

%8'Cl

%2’ €L

pusibuz




‘Page 40

EWZI0Z  2WII0Z  LLO0I0Z 018002  6OMOOZ  BO/ZOOZ

i = - B %05 :
1 i § 7 e %.6 | %6 | %6 | %66 | %66 |0 pugjbuz
3 g 1 & | %09 ,
| 1 : 3 - %86 - - %00l | %66 |& uopuoy
i .
b . B = %66 | %66 | %66 | %00L | %00l |V |smmoqubren reonsness
iy
i .__
m h i %08 %001 | %001 | %001 | %00} | %00L | %001 | - 186121 AoBLniesy
.— | f
: |
i I 1 m L L swe |USRID | %86 | %.6 | %86 | %96 | %O00L | %001 AebuneH
- g ' g | ﬁ._._ it c5 | 8 : 2 m 8 8  (sumek g 35m))
- L i 5 = = = m
ol =z M g = g < m. Q) puesy wuey Huon
s;{él;;(b‘ll e w 5] - =] m .

"SN Yyum JoBuo| ou 1 oym Jreyo Aousbe ue JO 4010 UB SBM ISUI0 S} ‘PaUINISI USU} PUB AJUNoD 8Ul 4o} oym AjiLue;
€ 0} S8je[2) 9SBD 8UQ "8OUBISU! SIU} WO SUOSSS] SPIM 80IAI9S IO O1109ds 8SED AUE ULIES| 0} YOS PUE BWIl} JO N0 SASED [|B 1B 300|
sJabeuew Jojuag "syuOW BLIOS 10} %00} Je Buleq Jeye Jojedipul soueLwIousd SIU} Ul BUIOBP 9%g SY} JO SIeME ale siebeuely Joiueg

JUSLILLOY 891A18S
2190 aides  zubny 2 giunp gi-few
| - : & ; B B
| | m 1 8 i JUBLIWIOT) BOUEWIIONSY
w ; - ““ @ | %ooL | %001 | %001 | %001 | %001 [ %001 | = 16618 fobuer|
4 | g | b %08
| ‘ 1 i 3 uesJD | %86 | %00L | %001 | %001 | %00t | %001 feBuyren
' d 8 | s0e P 2
| 1 14 1 & m Roelog il & | B LENE g oo
! - - et e et Lot | R = o = N a2 = : o:mb juedsy
se[eosewwl} PeINDS] UIYUM POMEIAS] 8J0M LDIUM SBSED LO0810.d PIIyo jo ebejusnied £9£d0




Page 41

ELRI02 2102 LLOLOZ E
-)',ICHJ T 7 »::_r,l._ - § :

[ i . 1 .

I M | m 900 %S6 | %S6 - - = - jebie) Aebuuer

| d i i

s BT _m frowae Jloquy | %ee | %se | wee | - d . i AeBuieH

% [ L %06 m 2 2 2 m ,m._ m (sseaf g 5B

- T | %001 m M N m s s sy

spJemo) pexiom Buisq si ease siy} U JuaweAcIdWl panunuoo
— ‘Buipiooai ysia pue Bunisia Jo Ayenb pue Aousnbal) Uo 801AISS BYL UIYIM SND0J BYY YUM Sulj Ul ~ spuswisAodwy pauleisng

5

2P0 zides gy zemr z-unr
R R

§ ] 4 3 |

a8 [

] l 3 9 P
i ..m { i W i .
B B B

B

| |

.

Ry

g

JUBLILLIOY 83jAIeS

"1obe) 9456 @y} Jo poys

isnl @ouewLIopad YiM S)ISIA uonosloid piyo ul jusiusAoidull paulelsng

JUBWIWOY ouelliopey
€ %56 | %S6 | %SB | %S6 | %S6 | UGE | 106 AobuLer
Jequly | %e6 | %e6 | %18 | %88 | %9. | %L6 AebBuneH :
w W_ o (o e U B §|  fuwoworwm

! iF i e.1 v &
) R B A e pueJ; Juedey

SISIA UoROBI0Id PIIUD 08€dO




| Page 42

:l-z,&.%;.l”‘...i,_ Y R g nsﬂg R, NCF Wa 5 Pﬂa-a o e PTET P PYRT N " T .\s‘/)/, . ,élcllrt( - l!illifci
: -t %0 3\
| : | i | AT
w ! .M M - %02 L %S6 | %56 - - - - i job1e Aobuiier
. 3
i B
w, 4 3 f m. Bovat pey %68 | %18 | %69 - - - febBuleH
CREEs L W e
w } : .W 5 S 3 2 m S g 3  (smok gise)
B . i m s Sl S S s | 3 puei} uley BuoT
pica — © ] = =] &
i . = %001 :

— ‘Buip1ooau JisiA pue Buisia jo Ayfenb pue Aousnbauy uo 8o1AIBS BU) UIYIM SNOO) By YHM BUI Ul — sjuswanoidun paureisng

"Uluow ixau jobie) By} 0} JOIESU SN SAOW [IIM SIU} JBY) POBESIAUS S| )} pUR 82IAI8S JO PESH Aq|
uedenspun x4om Jo 80a1d B Jo }nsal e sk S| esealoul abejusoiad 8y} ‘spiemo) pasom Buieq si BaJe Sy} Ul JuswsAoidwl panupuos

JUBLIWOD 8dIAIeS

"1} 0S 1eak sy} Jo eourwIouad 1S0¢ -
'SYIUOW 1US031 Ul |9AS] SIY} SA0QER Usag
SBUY }l PUB % 18 18 paxead g1/1 10z Ui sdurwIoued 19B.1e) Mojeq ybnouyy -

e-P0  zides iy zor  zunp  zien
u e = . m : ;i %0 BWILIGY 90UBWIOHSH
1 q = : ,
M | 1 4 9 @ | %56 | %S6 | %56 | %56 | %G6 | %56 | 106p, Aobuiser
| . f W 8 | %or - :
{ - 1 ¢ p 1 i
i o “ e POY | %68 | %/8 | %28 | %9. | %08 | %08 Kebupen

i - i I %0

W 1 3 % U (R D)
! Sl - B R WW o R A o S B e i)
| - T = A S el el NS O i

‘ SUSIA PeeN ul ueipiiyD 18edo




Page 43 Agenda ltem 7

X

7?

Haringey
Briefing for: Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Practice Advisory
Committee
Title: Visits to Children subject to Child Protection Plans
Rachel Oakley, Head of Service, Safeguarding, Quality
Report by: Assurance and Practice Development
Date: 22 November 2012

Introduction - Reported visits in September 2012

At the end of September there were 326 children subject to plans, 92.6% visits
were recorded as having taken place within the month. This ranges as follows:

Disabled Children 62% visits recorded as having taken place within
timescale

Safeguarding and Support 96% visits recorded as having taken place within
timescale

First Response 89% visits recorded as having taken place within
timescale

Court Team 88% visits recorded as having taken place within
timescale

Page 1 of 4



Page 44

X

7’4

Haringey
Children subjectto a Child Protection Plan due a visitin S ept
2012 (% of visits thattook place in the month)
CwD - 13 (B2%)
Court Team - 16
(58 %)
First Response -
B4 (39%)
safeguarding -
230 (96 %)
Objective:

To validate that there was a written report uploaded on to FWi of visits to
children subject to child protections plan during the month of September 2012.

Methodology:

At the end of September 326 children were subject to Child Protection Plans, of
this number it was reported that 92.6% (302) had had a child protection visit
during the month.

A random sample of 23 children’s files, within the age range of 0-17 were
audited to ensure that the individual child was seen during the visit and a record
was in place to confirm this.

The 23 children identified had between them a total of 32 siblings, their files
were also checked to ensure that a visit had taken place and they had been
seen individually by a social worker. This made a total sample of 55. Where
issues of concern were identified they have been reported directly to the
responsible Head of Service.

The Template:

Page 2 of 4



Page 45

X

7’4

Haringey

Visits are recorded on a Child Protection Visit template which is uploaded on
FWi as a case note. The template is in “word” and is not part of an “episode”,
templates appear to be have been amended over time and there is not one
standard format and in some cases the text has been corrupted.

As this is a standalone template there is no system built into FWI for manager’s
authorisation.

Of the total number of 55 children whose files were checked 78% (43) were
seen and a record made of the interaction with the child and the social workers
observations, this is in addition to the general family information held within the
report.

Quality Concerns:

Three of the children had visits entered as having taken place but there was no
written record of the visit on file, four connected siblings also had no record of a
visit in September.

In one instance (1 child), a template was uploaded and counted as a visit but the
family were not in and therefore the children not seen.

In the case of two large families the social worker conducted the visit and copied
over the record of the visit on to all the children’s files, however, not all the
children were seen on the visit. In one instance an older child was out, whilst in
another the social worker only saw one child. The reasons why this happened
were evident; however, it did mean the social worker did not have contact during
the month with those children.

One visit was recorded on a child-in-need template and a further four visits were
recorded in unstructured case notes.

In the cohort there were a small number of families with four or more children, in
these families the attention and focus afforded the children individually tended to
be less.

Points for consideration:

e Review and reformatting of Child Protection Visit template — this has been
referred to the Operational System Support Team to include in their work
plan.

e Establish clarity on recording practice in relation to the recording of visits
to individual children and sibling groups — this will be address as part of
MOSAIC which will support family based recording.

e Further thought on working with large families and how individual children
are seen alone and the voice of all of the children heard, integrating
learning from past Serious Case Reviews — this is on the OD

Page 3 of 4



Page 46

Haringey

Commissioning Agenda for 2013/14 and will form one aspect of the short
course programme.

e Services to establish who to take ongoing responsibility for quality
checking child protection visits

e Managers to re-issue the guidance on expectations for statutory visits

Page 4 of 4



Page 47 Agenda ltem 10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Draft minutes 29.10.2012 v2

	5 Matters arising
	6 Performance Assessment - Year to October 2012 incorporating updated comparative data for 2011/12
	October Performance

	7 Visits to children subject to child protection plans
	10 OUT OF TIME ASSESSMENTS

